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            3                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good evening.  Let

            4  the record reflect that the time is 6:05 p.m.  My name is

            5  Dwana King.  I am employed with the Louisiana Department

            6  of Environmental Quality.  I will be serving as the

            7  Hearing Officer this evening, Thursday, February 21st,

            8  2008.

            9                 This hearing is scheduled to accept public

           10  comments concerning the technically complete solid waste

           11  permit application and the associated Environmental

           12  Assessment Statement for Harrelson Materials and

           13  Management, Incorporated, Type III construction and

           14  demolition debris/woodwaste landfill, Shreveport, Caddo

           15  Parish, Louisiana, agency interest number 28118, Permit

           16  Number OU-0269 and Activity Tracking Number PER19950001

           17  and the associated Environmental Assessment Statement.

           18  This site is located at 1101 Russell Road, Shreveport,

           19  Caddo Parish.

           20                 Harrelson Materials and Management,

           21  Incorporated requested a permit for a construction and

           22  demolition debris landfill.  Harrelson Materials and

           23  Management, Incorporated is an existing facility

           24  operating under an order of upgrade for the site and is

           25  currently disposing of construction and demolition debris
�
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            1  and woodwaste.

            2                 The Environmental Assessment Statement

            3  submitted by the applicant addresses avoidance of

            4  potential and real environmental effects, balancing of

            5  social and economic benefits against environmental impact

            6  costs, and alternative sites, projects, and mitigation

            7  measures.
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            8                 This hearing is not being conducted in a

            9  question and answer format.  Please remember that the

           10  purpose of this public hearing is for DEQ to receive your

           11  comments concerning the technically complete solid waste

           12  permit application and the associated Environmental

           13  Assessment Statement.

           14                 This hearing is to provide all individuals

           15  a chance to be heard regardless of their position on the

           16  technically complete solid waste permit application and

           17  the associated Environmental Assessment Statement.

           18                 Courteous behavior is expected of everyone

           19  at all times.  You may speak in support of the permitting

           20  actions, in opposition to the permitting actions or

           21  simply to provide additional information.  All interested

           22  parties will be given a reasonable opportunity to

           23  comment, unless testimony is not related to the purpose

           24  of the hearing.  All comments heard and transcribed

           25  during this hearing and all written comments received in
�
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            1  the comment period will be evaluated and addressed in the

            2  department's written response.

            3                 A public notice advertising this public

            4  hearing and request for public comment on the technically

            5  complete solid waste permit and the associated

            6  Environmental Assessment Statement was published in The

            7  Times, Shreveport, Louisiana and The Advocate, Baton

            8  Rouge, Louisiana on January 24th, 2008.  A copy of the

            9  technically complete solid waste permit application and

           10  the associated Environmental Assessment Statement are

           11  available for inspection and review at the LDEQ Public
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           12  Records Center, Room 127, 602 North 5th Street, Baton

           13  Rouge, Louisiana.  Viewing hours are 8:00 a.m. to

           14  4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday, except holidays.  The

           15  available information can also be accessed electronically

           16  on the Electronic Document Management System on the DEQ

           17  public website at www.deq.louisiana.gov.

           18                 Additional copies are also available for

           19  review at the Shreve Memorial Library-Headquarters, 424

           20  Texas Street, Shreveport, Louisiana, City of Shreveport

           21  Mayor's Office, 505 Travis Street, Suite 200, Shreveport,

           22  Louisiana and the LDEQ-Northwest Regional Office, 1525

           23  Fairfield Avenue, Room 529, Shreveport, Louisiana.  In

           24  addition, copies of the public notice were mailed to

           25  individuals who have requested to be placed on the
�
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            1  mailing list maintained by the Office of Environmental

            2  Services on January 22nd, 2008.

            3                 In accordance with the Louisiana

            4  Administrative Code, Title 33.7, Section 509.F.7,

            5  comments received by 12:30 p.m., Monday, March 24th, 2008

            6  will be considered prior to a final decision.  All

            7  comments received by 12:30 p.m. March 24th, 2008, shall

            8  be retained by the department and considered in

            9  determining whether to issue or deny the technically

           10  complete solid waste permit application and the

           11  associated Environmental Assessment Statement.

           12                 Written comments on this technically

           13  complete solid waste permit and the associated

           14  Environmental Assessment Statement may be submitted to

           15  Ms. Soumaya Ghosn, LDEQ-OES Environmental Assistance

           16  Division, P.O. Box 4313, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-
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           17  4313.

           18                 Under Louisiana Revised Statutes 30:2017,

           19  the department is required to follow the following order

           20  with the provision that the presiding officer may give

           21  preference to a public official to speak at any time

           22  during the hearing.  However, any time limit set for

           23  citizen testimony shall apply to the public officials.

           24                 The department must provide up to

           25  30 minutes to the permit applicant for an introductory
�
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            1  presentation.  Thereafter, preference for speakers up to

            2  one hour is given as follows:  For the first hour, to

            3  those citizens who live within a two-mile radius of the

            4  location of the facility; for the second hour, to those

            5  citizens who work within a two-mile radius of the

            6  location of the facility; and for the third hour, for the

            7  citizens who live within the parish of the location of

            8  the facility.

            9                 Thereafter, each hour of the hearing shall

           10  alternate between those who are in support of the

           11  technically complete solid waste permit application and

           12  the associated Environmental Assessment Statement and

           13  those who oppose the permits.

           14                 The order of tonight's hearing will be

           15  based on information provided by the speaker on the

           16  registration form.  Anyone who registered to speak but

           17  did not provide the necessary information will be given

           18  the opportunity to speak.  However, they will be called

           19  last in the order of registration.

           20                 This hearing is being transcribed.
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           21  Therefore, I would ask that each speaker begin by stating

           22  for the record their name, address and any organization

           23  he or she may represent.

           24                 I would like to remind you to turn off all

           25  cell phones.  Thank you.
�
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            1                 At this time I would like to ask the

            2  permit applicant's representative to come forward and

            3  make their introductory presentation.

            4                 MR. CRAMER:  Thank you, Madame Hearing

            5  Officer.  My name is George Cramer.  I'm with the

            6  environmental consulting firm of Arcadis at 10352 Plaza

            7  Americana in Baton Rouge.

            8                 We have a brief presentation tonight to

            9  respond to some of the concerns that have been noted in

           10  the letters that have been sent out.  Our presentation

           11  tonight will just address those items that we feel need

           12  to be pointed out for the public.

           13                 As you know, that's an aerial photograph

           14  of the facility.  It's surrounded on three sides by

           15  woods.  On the east side is -- southeast side is the City

           16  of Shreveport sewage treatment plant.  On the north side,

           17  of course, across I-220 right of way is a residential

           18  area.

           19                 These are just some pictures of the

           20  facility.  As you can see, most of the area along the

           21  interstate is wooded and is visually screened from the

           22  facility.

           23                 This is a picture of the sewage treatment

           24  plant that's to the southeast.  The facility employs

           25  operators certified by the Louisiana Department of
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            1  Environmental Quality so that people that are actually

            2  doing the work at the facility are very well trained in

            3  the requirements of the DEQ regulations.

            4                 The items that are accepted by the

            5  facility are noted here.  And those look like some of

            6  these items here, concrete, which is retained in a

            7  separate area and is chipped for reuse, and general

            8  construction demolition debris that people bring to the

            9  facility from the demolition of homes and buildings.

           10                 This is the definition of C&D waste.  This

           11  is what is accepted at the facility.  You'll note that

           12  almost half of that definition is what is not accepted at

           13  the facility.  The other item is woodwaste that's brought

           14  to the facility and is segregated there in a separate

           15  area, and that looks like your yard waste, things that

           16  people generally throw away from work at their homes.

           17                 You'll note that that woodwaste is chipped

           18  and taken off-site and used for boiler fuel.  So it's

           19  beneficially reused.  It's not disposed of there to the

           20  extent that they can.  And that's the definition of yard

           21  trash that's included with woodwaste.

           22                 Just as important is what is not as

           23  accepted at the facility and these items are prohibited

           24  by regulation and are not accepted at the facility.

           25  There is a sign posted that even goes beyond what is
�
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            1  prohibited by regulation.

            2                 The facility is inspected regularly, both
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            3  by DEQ, and each waste load is inspected several times as

            4  it's brought onto the facility to make sure that only

            5  materials that are allowed in the facility are accepted.

            6  The important thing is that there is a good layer of clay

            7  underneath the facility that makes this facility an ideal

            8  location for waste disposal.  This clay layer exceeds the

            9  department requirements, and it's there to protect the

           10  underlying ground water and prohibit anything that might

           11  leak downward out of the facility.

           12                 This is a picture of the concrete crushing

           13  area and the operation that works there.  There is one

           14  area in the northern part of the facility that did have

           15  some sandier material in it.  That material was removed

           16  down to the underlying clay that we've talked about

           17  previously.  So the majority of the facility is underlaid

           18  by this clay.  This is the type of operation that you see

           19  at that facility.

           20                 The facility has a Louisiana discharge

           21  permit.  However, it's never discharged under HMM.

           22  There's a permitted berm all the way around the facility

           23  that impounds the water and has been built to retain

           24  water with more than sufficient pre-bore even during

           25  the heaviest rain events.
�
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            1                 There have been some questions about

            2  zoning.  The area that's included in this permit is not

            3  in dispute with the facility -- with the City of

            4  Shreveport as far as zoning goes.  That's a rather poor

            5  site plan there.  There are some better ones that were

            6  shown by DEQ earlier.

            7                 Thank you, Madame Chairman, that's my
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            8  presentation tonight.

            9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  I will now begin by

           10  allowing all persons who have signed up to speak ten

           11  minutes in which to present their comments.  Anyone who

           12  needs more than ten minutes will be allowed to finish his

           13  or her comments after all of the speakers have had the

           14  opportunity to speak.

           15                 The first to speak will be those citizens

           16  who live within a two-mile radius of the location of the

           17  facility.  Mr. Joe -- is it Stewart?

           18                 MR. STEWART:  Good evening, ladies and

           19  gentlemen.  And first of all, I want to thank the EPA

           20  people for allowing me this forum.  I have really a

           21  statement that I thought was going to be three minutes,

           22  but one thing I want to correct before I start my speech.

           23  The gentleman up here just before me said that -- was

           24  giving the location.  He never mentioned Twelve Mile Bayou

           25  that's just south of that landfill.
�
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            1                 I live close to the landfill.  I've seen

            2  my neighbors die.  I've seen my friends die at a young

            3  age.  We don't know what's causing it, but we know

            4  something is.

            5                 I want to start by saying why is this

            6  landfill here in the first place?  Years ago we didn't

            7  have any representation.  Nobody represented us.  Nobody

            8  told us that we should vote on taking in this landfill.

            9  We are a permanent black community up there, and up until

           10  about 12 years ago we didn't even have representation.

           11  And so they just brought in what they wanted and we had
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           12  to accept it, but we've had enough.  We would like to let

           13  everybody know and even the people in Baton Rouge that we

           14  are somebody too, that we have problems, but we don't

           15  need nobody to come in and create problems for us.

           16                 We don't have a whole lot of rights and

           17  voices about what has happened in the past.  We don't

           18  have Jesse Jackson out hear hopping and whooping and

           19  hollering and telling everybody we are somebody, but we

           20  are somebody.  We are somebody who just want a fair shake

           21  in life.

           22                 The City of Shreveport has been trying to

           23  help us.  Some people from the EPA has, but still we

           24  haven't -- we've got a mountain of trash out there.  Our

           25  property values have gone down.  I've been out there
�
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            1  36 years, and my house is still valued what it did in

            2  1978.  Now, there's something wrong somewhere.

            3                 We've got animals that's bringing germs

            4  into our neighborhood.  We've got dust.  We've got

            5  everything out here that's causing us problems, but

            6  nobody seems to be listening.  Why don't people accept

            7  the fact that we're somebody too.  We need somebody to

            8  listen to our cry.  We need somebody to come out and just

            9  talk with us, go in the community, see how people are,

           10  see why we've got sickness that we can't find out what's

           11  wrong with us.  It is something wrong.  And I think the

           12  system has failed us, but I think you people have come

           13  here to try to help us and we're grateful.

           14                 The Cooper Road has 20,000 people out

           15  there.  Do you know that is the -- 20,000 black people.

           16  Do you know there's only one place in the United States
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           17  that's got that concentration of black people and that's

           18  Harlem in New York because it's all black, it's not just

           19  predominantly black, it is all black.  And we just -- and

           20  people just have thrown us away.  They have decided that

           21  we are nobody, and that's why most of us are here

           22  tonight, to prove to the whole world that we are

           23  somebody.

           24                 So we need to send a message back to Baton

           25  Rouge and wherever else that people will listen to us and
�
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            1  let everybody know that we are somebody and we don't want

            2  this mountain of trash and misery in our neighborhood,

            3  and I thank you.

            4                 (Applause.)

            5                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Stewart, will

            6  you please give us your last name and spell it for the

            7  record?

            8                 THE WITNESS:  Stewart, S-T-E-W-A-R-T.

            9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.

           10  Mr. Lemar Holden, Sr.

           11                 MR. HOLDEN:  Thank you DEQ personnel.  My

           12  brothers and sisters, I'm a pastor and so I use that

           13  phrase.  I'm glad to have the opportunity to speak, and I

           14  wholeheartedly agree with the speaker that spoke before

           15  me.

           16                 My thing has always been that this

           17  landfill I believe is a health hazard, and the reason

           18  that I called a news conference about five weeks ago is

           19  to draw attention to this problem.  I believe the jury is

           20  still out on it.  No one really knows, and I don't want
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           21  to wait around until the jury comes back and says, yes,

           22  this landfill is guilty of chemical waste that has

           23  affected our people.

           24                 I have been pastoring in the Cooper Road

           25  area for 28 years, and I've watched a lot of folks just
�
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            1  take sick it seems like for no reason at all, and I'm

            2  going to ask DEQ to consider the folk in the community

            3  that we are tired.  Just as the speaker said before me,

            4  this needs to be moved out on the outskirts of the city.

            5  We live in a city -- and he said 20,000.  There's 20,000

            6  plus citizens live in the Martin Luther King area and

            7  they have lived without a voice, but the constitution

            8  begins by "We the people," and we the people don't want it

            9  any longer.  It may meet all of the government

           10  requirements, but we just don't want it in that location

           11  any longer.

           12                 And I believe that we need to take that

           13  back to Baton Rouge, and we will not end with this

           14  meeting, that we may have to have another meeting with

           15  the environmentalist department out of Dallas, but we

           16  must move to close this plant.  It is not acceptable any

           17  longer.  It's not a question whether you have dammed it

           18  all the way.  I noticed the first speaker, he spoke and

           19  said it was bound by I-220, but he forgot the Russell

           20  Road that leads right into the community.

           21                 That's what we're worried about.  A rain

           22  like today and last night will cause water to run from

           23  that area over onto Russell Road into the community.  The

           24  children will play in the grass that has been saturated

           25  with the chemicals that run from it.  I heard him showing
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            1  pictures of it, rock crushing.  Let me tell you I've been

            2  in the construction industry for a long time.  You'd be

            3  surprised of all of the chemicals that's being waste on

            4  concrete and saturated down that pad.  That is more worse

            5  than a mattress that someone sleeps on because that fresh

            6  concrete has a lot of chemicals, oil which is wrong to

            7  dump in there.  All kind of chemicals that is saturated

            8  in the concrete that they are crushing up and it's

            9  supposed to be all right.  It's all right because it's in

           10  our neighborhood, but I've come to tell you tonight that

           11  it's not all right, and we will not, and let me say that

           12  again, we will not rest until it's closed.  Thank you.

           13                 (Applause.)

           14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. Arthur Russell?

           15                 MR. RUSSELL:  Good evening.  Thank you.  I

           16  would like to thank you for allowing me to get up here

           17  and speak.  I didn't get this opportunity when that dump

           18  site was put there.  Had I gotten this opportunity, I

           19  would have posed it then, but I'm here to express my

           20  feelings.

           21                 I have grandchildren.  I live at 1806

           22  Mack Marshall.  That's right on the corner of Russell Road,

           23  and Mack Marshall, the first street there.  There have been

           24  numerous times while I'm sitting in my yard, me and my

           25  grandchildren, we have to get up and go in the house
�
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            1  because of these big trucks coming by and the flap on it

            2  just flinging dust, and the wind blows the dust over on
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            3  my property, over on my grandchildren and myself.  I

            4  mean, it's a hazard.  We can't even sit outdoors during

            5  the summertime.

            6                 My neighbor and I, we go out quite often

            7  and pick up debris and nails and tacks and all kinds of

            8  stuff out of the streets that these trucks going to the

            9  dump site just drop it off their trucks.  They don't

           10  care.  And I'm sure a lot of you have noticed a washing

           11  machine, a stove and everything is scattered up and down

           12  the streets where they have no concern for us.

           13                 The Mayor have issued an order for high

           14  grass to be cut, issued an order to get the cars out of

           15  our driveways trying to clean the city, the area up.  I'm

           16  reaching out to DEQ, and I'm reaching out to Mayor

           17  Glover, please help us get this landfill out of this

           18  area.  We've done all we can to improve our property.

           19  We've done everything we can to try to live and be a

           20  productive citizen, but to just bring a landfill in here

           21  full of chemical waste and all type of debris is just

           22  appalling.  It's just -- you're just showing that you

           23  don't care.

           24                 We didn't know anything about the North

           25  Regional Treatment Plant.  I worked there before.  It's
�
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            1  in a flood zone.  They just stuck it down there, didn't

            2  give us an opportunity to voice our comments, but that's

            3  another subject.  That is nothing near what this landfill

            4  is doing to our community and our children.

            5                 I ask you all to please pray and ask God

            6  to be on our side and start to be on our city's officials

            7  side to help us do all we can to get that landfill out of
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            8  our community.  Thank you.

            9                 (Applause.)

           10                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. J.T. -- and I'm

           11  sorry, I can't read the last name?  Come up and give us

           12  your name for the record, sir?

           13                 MR. JWITT:  My name is J.T. Jwitt.  When I

           14  was listening to the earlier speaker, he said those

           15  chemicals -- and since I retired, I noticed certain

           16  dumps, they don't allow plastic and sheetrock and stuff

           17  like that.  Since I retired, I'm dealing with certain

           18  (inaudible) and certain individuals and we carried

           19  everything over there and dumped it.  They just bulldozed

           20  it off.  I ain't seen no search in there.  They just

           21  bulldoze it off as you come in, pushed it, and I know it

           22  came.  Ain't no way you could just keep the water out of

           23  the Twelve Mile Bayou, and we pump it out -- in the summer

           24  months they pump it out in the Cross Lake.

           25                 And the Russell Road, nails -- I keep good
�
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            1  tires on my car because my wife is working at night.  On

            2  the Russell Road I'll bet you I got about four or five

            3  nails or screws in the car.  Mud, you can't much hardly

            4  tell where that (inaudible), and it's coming from there.

            5  That's all I've got to say.

            6                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mr. J.T., would you

            7  spell your last name for the record?

            8                 THE WITNESS:  J-W-I-T-T.

            9                 (Applause.)

           10                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  The next two groups

           11  of speakers are those who work within a two-mile radius
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           12  of the location of the facility and those citizens who

           13  live within the parish of the location of the facility.

           14  I think that we have already covered those groups and we

           15  don't have anybody in those categories.

           16                 At this time I would like to call those

           17  citizens who are in support of the technically complete

           18  solid waste permit and the associated Environmental

           19  Assessment Statement followed by those citizens who are

           20  opposed to the permits.  The next speaker, Mr. George

           21  Cramer.  Oh, he's from the facility.

           22                 DeNicholas Chambers?

           23                 MR. CHAMBERS:  Good evening, everyone, and

           24  I thank the DEQ for this opportunity.  I am a resident

           25  of -- former resident of the Martin Luther King area,
�
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            1  better known as Cooper Road, and I've lived there all of

            2  my life and born and raised there and reared as a child

            3  there.

            4                 And there is no community growth in that

            5  area, and one of the reasons why I moved out of the area

            6  a couple of months ago, recently I looked back and

            7  determined why, and I thought about, well, there's a

            8  landfill there.  No one wants to put any other kind of

            9  stores or anything with that landfill being there.

           10                 There is a -- when I go to Cooper Road, I

           11  ran insurance out there for two years, and out of that

           12  two-year period of time I caught more nails in my tires

           13  than anything just living and coming back from the Cooper

           14  Road, and I traveled Russell Road a lot.  It made me go

           15  around to come to North Market, and I shouldn't have to

           16  do that, to get to my home.
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           17                 As far as that landfill being out there,

           18  there is no justice for us.  Justice has not been served

           19  in the Cooper Road area.  I remember my parents fighting

           20  this issue a long time ago when I didn't know what they

           21  were fighting about.  I used to come home and they would

           22  talk about it in the living room, but I never knew what

           23  they were fighting about, but now that I've grown up and

           24  gotten older and I understand things a little better,

           25  they were fighting for justice, and we, the people on the
�
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            1  Cooper Road have injustice.  We have been served

            2  injustice.  We haven't been treated right at all.

            3                 Later in life I plan to move back to the

            4  Cooper Road, and it would be an injustice to my kids for

            5  them to have to suffer the health hazards that that

            6  landfill causes in that community.

            7                 That is my comment and I hope that it has

            8  helped this event to help get the landfill off of the

            9  Cooper Road.  We want it gone.  I know I do, and I'm

           10  looking forward to getting it gone.  I would like to see

           11  the Cooper Road be better than a trash collector.

           12  Thank you.

           13                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  The next speaker,

           14  Mr. David Shinpoch.

           15                 MR. SHINPOCH:  Good evening.  My name is

           16  David Shinpoch, and I come here tonight as a private

           17  citizen.  It's my contention that the Harrelson Materials

           18  Management's permit is not technically complete for the

           19  following reasons:  HMM does not have a valid trust

           20  agreement in place for closure and post closure of
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           21  this facility.  In previous permit applications HMM

           22  listed First Louisiana Bank as its trust account.

           23                 Investigation showed that First Louisiana

           24  Bank does not and did not have authority from the State

           25  of Louisiana Office of Financial Institutions or the FDIC
�
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            1  to act as a trust.  When First Louisiana was notified by

            2  the Office of Financial Institutions that they were

            3  operating beyond their scope of authority the account was

            4  closed.

            5                 HMM then opened a money market account in

            6  a bank in Tennessee called Trust One Bank.  I spoke with

            7  a Ms. Vivian Lamb with the Tennessee Department of

            8  Financial Institutions, and she informed me that Trust

            9  One Bank does not have trust power.  I went to the

           10  Tennessee Department of Financial Institution's website

           11  and searched for Tennessee state chartered trust

           12  companies and there is no Trust One Bank with trust

           13  power.  I then went to the FDIC's web page and searched

           14  to see if Trust One had authority from the FDIC.  Again,

           15  they don't have trust power.

           16                 Without a proper trust account this permit

           17  cannot be technically complete.  Therefore, this agency

           18  has no other alternative than to deny the permit

           19  application and issue an order to close.

           20                 I have also brought for your review a list

           21  of the Tennessee charter.  Also, I went to the FDIC and

           22  you can see that Trust One Bank, and this is a copy of

           23  the trust agreement.  Thank you.

           24                 (Applause.)

           25                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Our next speaker,
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            1  James Shelton.

            2                 MR. SHELTON:  My name is James Larry

            3  Shelton.  I live at 237 Leo Street in the City of

            4  Shreveport, Caddo Parish.  Wow, where is the Sierra Club

            5  when you need them, huh?

            6                 I've gone through a lot of permit

            7  applications myself.  The gentleman here says he has a

            8  lot of certified operators.  I have the privilege of

            9  working with LDEQ as a guest speaker talking about Class

           10  I and III facilities.  As a resident of the City of

           11  Shreveport and a professional in this industry for

           12  25 years, I've got a lot of problems with the site.  I've

           13  worked with wonderful people in the Louisiana Department

           14  of Environmental Quality and tonight I'd like to unite

           15  the citizens, and I'm surprised that there's not more

           16  people from the lake area out here that aren't worried

           17  about safe drinking water.

           18                 The gentleman said that he's got -- I

           19  guess he's got clay that meets ten to minus seven

           20  permeability.  That being the case, that's like

           21  concrete.  I don't know where he's getting the clay from

           22  because I didn't know those actual soils were around that

           23  area.  I've attempted to a C&D site that was south of

           24  Shreveport near the LSU area.  I was told then by Claude

           25  Beasley with LDEQ this could not happen because the
�
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            1  landfill that I wanted to permit, which was a C&D site,

            2  was beyond the levy.  Well, I don't know if y'all
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            3  noticed, but Cross Lake is the city's drinking water.

            4  There's a levy there, okay?

            5                 Well, his site is going to get to continue

            6  when I couldn't permit a site because I was told new

            7  rules and regs saying that you can't permit a site beyond

            8  the levy near the Red River.  Well, I guess the Red River

            9  is a better body of water than Cross Lake, obviously, and

           10  this is out near The Havens.

           11                 Here's what bothers me.  If I couldn't

           12  permit a site there and they are letting this site go,

           13  what's the difference?  What's happened?  Have the rules

           14  changed?  Is it safer?  Is it not safe to have a landfill

           15  in South Shreveport but it is in the Cooper Road area?  I

           16  think that is an injustice.

           17                 The site is closer to the only water

           18  supply the City of Shreveport has.  I guess reading the

           19  news, it does not allow the matter or doesn't concern

           20  itself with the matter that it's near the city's water

           21  supply.  I'm very confused because I couldn't put one

           22  near the Red River, but we can have one right by our city

           23  water drinking (sic).  I mean, that's our water supply.

           24  That's the only water supply we have.  So what's the

           25  difference?  I'd like to permit a site south of town, so
�
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            1  I would like LDEQ to let me permit a site right by the

            2  Red River.  I think that's a safer site than the site

            3  that's being operated today.

            4                 Basically, if you were going to permit

            5  this site south of town, you try to permit this site in

            6  Broadmoor or in Southern Trace, it would not happen.

            7  There would be so much public opposition they would not
Page 20



harrelsonDEQ

            8  allow that site to continue to operate, and you all know

            9  that that are here today, but I guess, if you read the

           10  paper, somehow it was going to be closed and now it's

           11  going to remain open.  What's changed?  What has changed?

           12  That's all I want to say, what has changed.  Thank you.

           13                 (Applause.)

           14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Mary Weinstein?  Is

           15  it Meddie Farrow?

           16                 MS. FARROW:  Here I am.  Thank you, DEQ.

           17  My name is Meddie Farrow, and the landfill is a health

           18  hazard to the community.  The waste spills off into the

           19  community and animals ravage this and then they also

           20  bring it back into the community.  It doesn't even have

           21  to be where they are owned by anyone, but they definitely

           22  bring it back into the community.  And we all know that

           23  fecal matter carries as many germs as anything else,

           24  probably more so than you're taking maybe some deadly

           25  medicine.  So the water can be -- our water supply could
�
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            1  be contaminated as the gentleman just said a few minutes

            2  ago.

            3                 So why isn't this in an outer area of the

            4  city?  The gentleman just a moment ago before me said

            5  that he knew why, because it would be -- not almost, but

            6  it would be impossible to have a landfill out past Kings

            7  Highway going all the way out to Ellerbe Road.  We all

            8  know that.  We all know that.  So -- but they have chosen

            9  the MLK area to dump it in, and then people stand around,

           10  you know, from the other groups saying how safe it is,

           11  but I've passed by there and I've seen trucks going in
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           12  carrying more stuff than you would imagine, sometimes

           13  it's almost like they were bringing stuff from down in

           14  New Orleans because they have to have a place to bury

           15  this stuff at, you know.   So who knows, they could be

           16  burying some of that contaminated stuff right in our area

           17  and three to five years from now more people will be

           18  dying.

           19                 If this runs off and is carried off into

           20  the water system, the gentleman just said how close our

           21  water system is to the landfill.  The stench that comes

           22  from this in the summertime or when the weather goes

           23  above 40 degrees, I mean, that is just unheard of for the

           24  people who live in that area that this horrible stench is

           25  coming from the landfill, traveling, and then of course
�
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            1  we know that the wind is capable of carrying things not

            2  only just two miles, the wind can take stuff all the way

            3  into another county, I mean, once it's picked up.

            4                 The pictures that was shown does not

            5  really tell the true story about that landfill.  And

            6  also, one of the things that happened at several meetings

            7  that I've been in in regards to Russell Road, some of the

            8  county officials have said that they are not going to

            9  repair Russell Road, you know, that they have done a lot

           10  of repairing to Russell Road, so no more are they going

           11  to go all the way down to the lowest part to rebuild it

           12  up.  Why?  Because the trucks that's coming into the

           13  landfill is tearing it up.  So the only thing that they

           14  do to Russell Road now is patch it.

           15                 You can take your car out there and you're

           16  going to fall into a big hole and you're going to have a
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           17  big car repair bill.  But it doesn't seem to matter if

           18  black children, if black people die of some unknown

           19  disease.  And why is it now in 2008 that we have to lay

           20  it on the line like that.  I mean, why is it?  I mean,

           21  we've come a long ways, but now we have to say is it

           22  because that that community is totally black, so it's

           23  okay if black children die.  It's okay if black children

           24  or black people come up with something that is

           25  undiagnosed by the doctor, the only thing they know they
�
                                                                       27

            1  are breaking out with things and they are dying of cancer

            2  at an earlier age than they should because it's not

            3  coming into our community, so I mean, hey, close our

            4  eyes, turn and look another way and just say isn't that a

            5  shame, isn't that a same.  But it is a shame that the

            6  people that own the landfill does not feel bad, don't

            7  have any conscience about placing that landfill in less

            8  than a half a mile from homeowners, homeowners that live

            9  in the MLK area.

           10                 Right down Russell Road it's less than a

           11  half a mile where you can find the landfill.  And who can

           12  say?  They are not there guarding that 24 hours a day.

           13  Who can say what comes in there, what plant?  When money

           14  starts exchanging hands, people look the other way.  We

           15  all know that.

           16                 But I want to say everybody that's here

           17  today your councilman is coming to the Lakeside Center

           18  tomorrow from 5:30 to 7:30.  We need to let Mr. Lester

           19  know don't sit on this, don't pass this, don't get your

           20  people in a corner and say, well, they are not saying

Page 23



harrelsonDEQ
           21  anything, so let's just go ahead and give these people a

           22  permit.  They are talking today, but tomorrow they won't

           23  have anything to say.  And that's been one of the things

           24  I notice sometimes when you go to council meetings they

           25  let black people just come up there and we just say it
�
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            1  all, and we just talk about how unhappy we are, why are

            2  you doing this, and that's just called, you know, letting

            3  off steam.  And then the next thing you know all of the

            4  things that you've talked about begins happening in your

            5  community, but yet our leaders are not doing anything

            6  about it.  So it's time for us to stand up and say, no,

            7  the landfill -- I mean, the permits will not be renewed.

            8  We will say enough is enough.  Thank you.

            9                 (Applause.)

           10                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ms. Annette Johnson.

           11                 MS. JOHNSON:  Good afternoon, everyone.

           12  I'm almost embarrassed to say I just found out about this

           13  meeting yesterday because I just checked my mail last

           14  night, but I just had to be here.

           15                 I am a product of the Cooper Road.  I've

           16  been living there almost all my life.  I moved from

           17  Allendale, but used to sit inside that house in

           18  Allendale, but my mom had a brighter vision and so we

           19  moved in the Cooper Road area.

           20                 But I just want to echo what has been

           21  said.  It's an eye sore.  It really is.  And I live on

           22  the Russell Road.  When you're driving down the Russell

           23  Road, it's just like you're driving on a roller coaster.

           24  They really won't repair the road.  They will just patch

           25  it up.  And these are our tax dollars.
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            1                 To say something about a threat to the

            2  water supply, I don't know if you remember a while back

            3  when something blew at the main water station, and I work

            4  at a school, and by 2:00 o'clock, you know, we were

            5  scrambling, trying to get the kids at home safely and

            6  stuff, but just think if that situation was permanent and

            7  you having it hanging over your head like, you know, I've

            8  got to go out and, you know, buy water all the time.

            9  Everybody can't afford bottled water.  I was blessed that

           10  I could buy some for my family.  God even blessed me to

           11  buy some for my neighbors.  So I'm blessed in that area.

           12                 But what if there was a cloud over

           13  Shreveport like that.  I mean, what if our neighbors and

           14  stuff, the elderly had no way to get bottled water and

           15  stuff.  I mean, what if we were under a boil order all

           16  the time.  Those couple of days I didn't like that.  You

           17  know, I didn't like ever feeling like that.  I've heard

           18  of other cities being under a cloud like that and I

           19  didn't like that, and that's our water supply.  That goes

           20  into our bodies.  And like the toxins, pollutants that

           21  carries in the air, I live up near Jameson and I can

           22  smell it during the summer, and it's really a grotesque

           23  odor.  It is.  So, you know, just for a voice for the

           24  record, I don't want that permit being renewed.  Thank

           25  you.
�
                                                                       30

            1                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  James Faison?

            2                 THE WITNESS:  I'm James Faison.  I live
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            3  just across the street from the dump.  As I stand before

            4  you today I'm dealing with cystic carcinoma, better

            5  known as cancer.  I dealt with and am still dealing with

            6  a tumor in the back of my left eye in the nasal cavity

            7  the size of a baseball.  Fortunately, I have good medical

            8  covering.  I was able to deal with this.  The tumor was

            9  surgically removed.  I had six weeks of radiation at one

           10  of our local hospitals.

           11                 I come by this dump nightly sometimes and

           12  I see 2:00, 3:00 in the morning there are large trucks

           13  over there.  I wonder why in the hell are they there at

           14  3:00 or 4:00 o'clock in the morning when the dump is

           15  closed.  The man said a little while ago they would cover

           16  up debris.  Who knows what kind of debris they are

           17  covering up.

           18                 Right now my surgeon says that my cancer

           19  may be from particles alike to lint from a carpet or some

           20  ground debris which would lead us back to cement or

           21  whatever you call that stuff.  So we don't know.

           22  However, they are looking into it.  If there's a link

           23  between my cancer and this dump, I will own the dump, I

           24  promise you that.

           25                 I also wondered why was the dump put there
�
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            1  in the first place.  Why is it there now.  To drive down

            2  Russell Road is like running a gauntlet.  You've got to

            3  duck and dodge debris, sometimes logs as big as I am,

            4  nails as long as I am tall.  Why?  There is an ordinance

            5  in this city and the State of Louisiana.  You must cover

            6  all of your debris when you are hauling it on any roadway

            7  in this state.  Half the time I'm behind people that's
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            8  got roofing material with nails in it falling off, and

            9  I've got to duck and dodge in my nice new vehicle that

           10  I'm blessed with.  Also, like the man said about these

           11  flats, I've had to repair six flats going up and down

           12  Russell Road.  That doesn't make any sense.

           13                 The main reason I'm hearing is I would

           14  like to wonder and ask if there's anyone else suffering

           15  from any malady that they think are related to this dump?

           16  My cancer is in remission right now.  I thank God for

           17  that.  I'm fortunate enough to have some good insurance,

           18  but a lot of those people that died that the man spoke of

           19  earlier, they probably didn't have this kind of covering,

           20  so they died.  They died for what, for what reason?

           21                 Someone said a minute ago if you've got

           22  enough money you can sweep anything under the rug.  I

           23  believe there's been toxic waste dumped and buried at

           24  this dump.  This is my belief.  I can't prove it, but

           25  I've got some people that's going to, and I thank you for
�
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            1  your time.

            2                 (Applause.)

            3                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are there any other

            4  comments?  Come forward and give us your name for the

            5  record?

            6                 MR. GILLIAM:  My name is Danny Gilliam.  I

            7  really didn't know much about the dump, and to be quite

            8  honest with you, the only problem I've ever had with the

            9  dump prior to now was going down Russell Road.  In the

           10  summer it's dusty and it becomes muddy with my car.  That

           11  was about the only problem I had with it until I was
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           12  asked to help with this project by my brother.  And then

           13  I started going door to door for some of the community

           14  people that live right in that vicinity such as the

           15  gentleman that just left.  I talked to him, and I heard

           16  many, many testimonies about the dump.

           17                 A lot of the people, I don't know why they

           18  are not here tonight.  Some are elderly, some are sick

           19  themselves and many other reasons maybe why they are not

           20  here tonight.  But again, I heard many, many testimonies

           21  going door to door, signing petitions and passing out

           22  flyers and that made me concerned, and I really got an

           23  insight of how much this is a health hazard, how much it

           24  is an eyesore to the people that live right there in the

           25  vicinity of the landfill.
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            1                 Again, I heard many, many testimonies of

            2  people just like the gentleman that just left of how they

            3  feel about this dump.  And if we can go door to door -- I

            4  know that's probably not possible -- but many people

            5  sitting right there, right now that will tell you some of

            6  the same things that these individuals have told you

            7  tonight, and that's basically what I have to tell you and

            8  I saw it first hand door to door.

            9                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are there any other

           10  comments?  Please come forward and give us your name?

           11                 MS. BAXTER:  Good evening.  My name is

           12  Andrea Baxter and thanks for giving me the opportunity to

           13  speak.  I live right across from the dump at 1353 Denise

           14  Circle.  I just want to say the dump is a health

           15  hazard.  My house stays dusty from the debris in the

           16  dump.  And all kind of things that's industry -- I travel
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           17  the Russell Road every day back and forth to work, and I

           18  have had more nails in my tires coming through there.

           19  You can see them laying on the road, and it's just a

           20  health hazard and we don't want it in our community.

           21                 (Applause.)

           22                 MS. BAXTER:  One more thing.  I would like

           23  to say that I think a lot of people are not here tonight

           24  because they did not know.  I live within a quarter of a

           25  mile and I did not get a notice.  If I had not stopped by
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            1  my mother-in-law's last night I would not have known

            2  about the meeting this evening myself.

            3                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is there anyone else

            4  who would like to give a comment?  Come forward and give

            5  us your name?

            6                 MS. WILLIAMS:  My name is Daphne Williams.

            7  I work for Senator Lydia Jackson.  I just wanted you guys

            8  to know that I've been taking notes and I've noted

            9  everything that you said and all of your concerns and I

           10  will certainly get those to Senator Jackson.  She's in

           11  Baton Rouge right now in special session, but I will make

           12  sure that she has your concerns.

           13                 (Applause.)

           14                 THE HEARING OFFICER:  Is there anyone

           15  else?   If there are no other comments, I would like to

           16  remind you that the comment period for this technically

           17  complete solid waste permit application and the

           18  associated Environmental Assessment Statement for

           19  Harrelson Materials and Management, Incorporated

           20  construction and demolition and debris/waste wood
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           21  landfill ends at 12:30 p.m., Monday, March 24th, 2008.

           22                 I have received a total of two exhibits

           23  during this hearing.  If there are no other comments, I

           24  would like to thank you for your attention and

           25  participation in this hearing.  Let the record reflect
�
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            1  that the time is 7:01.  The hearing is closed.  Thank

            2  you.

            3                 (End of hearing.)

            4                 (The exhibits are attached.)

            5

            6                       *       *      *
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